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‘porch with balustraded roof supported by tapered columns of
‘the Doric order was built across the entire rear facade.

b =

Waverley, a large two-story brick home long associated
with the Harris and Hungerford families of Charles County,
stands at the end of a private drive about three-quarters
of a mile east of Lower Ccdar Point (Morgantown) in the lower
Potomac River Valley. The entrance to the property is
on the east side of the Wayside-Morgantown Road, about
one mile south of Wayside. The 136 acres nominated encompass
scveral historic features, including the house, the original
entrance approach and gate posts (the approach drive has
been abandoned for many years and is largely overgrown, though
still discernable), the sites of several field cabins, and
that portion of the original acreage that remains a part
of the existing Waverley tract.

The five bay, Flemish-bond principal facade of the main
block, facing the Potomac River, has centered, elliptically
hecaded entrance framed by panelled jambs and headed by a
headed fanlight. Within the doorway and flanking the
double door are narrow tapered colurns and three-pane
sidelights. At the base of the fanlight and hidden by a
shelf above the door are two small lecad figures of a boy .
and girl ,purportedly g1v1ng good fortune to those who pass
beneath, Flanking the entrance are four large windows of
twelve over twelve lights, with flat arches of splayed
stretcher brick, and louvered blinds that are a replacement
of earlier panelled ones. Across the scecond floor level
are flve wirdows of eight over twelv: sash. Below the
first floor windows are four small worod barred cellar windows.
There is no watertable. Toward the 2nd of the nineteenth
century a ore story porch was built across this elevation
and traces ¢f its outline can be discerncd in the brickwork.
A brick entrance stoop now fronts tha doorwgy.

The rear (north) elevation of the main block was origine iy
only three kays in width but a later addition (c. 1823)
built against the east end toward thz northeast corner
extended this facade two additional nays at both floor level:s.
Centered on the original wall area is an arched ‘*doorway
similar in treatment to that of the principal facade except
that the arch frames an unornamented board panel. Orlglnql
brickwork behind this panel negates any possibility that
the axrch once framed a fanlight. The two flanking windows
and the three second floor windows are treated in the same
manner as those ¢of the facade. On both elevations the roof
cornice is of stepped brick with one course of brick set on
the diagonal in a sawtooth fashion. The two first and seconc
floor bays of the addition consist of transomed end doors
and adjacenf. windows treated the same as those of the main
block, At the time that the addition was made a two story

Mortices for the floor and roof joists of the porch, provided

(See continuvation sheet No. 1)
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7. DESCRIPTION, continucd

for when the wing was built, but punched into the walls of

the main block, document the fact that the addition and porch
were contemporary to once ancther. When the present owners
acquired the property in the early 1960's, the porch was in
need of massive structural repair and was removecd and rebuilt,
using a brick floor in place of the original frame floor and
five slightly larger columns instead of the original six.

Both ends of the main block are of common bond construction
and are not as finely built as the front and rear facades.
Since the brick courses of the ends do not match those of ‘
the front and rear walls, and the latter crudely bonded into
the former it has been speculated thet the ends of the house
remain from an earlier structure incorporated into the presenz
building. The two windows of each floor level on the fully
exposed west end match precisely those of the front and
rear elevations and there is no evidence whatsoever that
they were ever altered.in size or location. At each ‘end of
the house are two flush chimneys joined by brick curtain
walls to a point slightly above the ioof peak. On each
end of the house, between the top of the curtaims and the top
of the attic window heads, the initials "MAH" (for Morgan
A, Harris) are set in glazed lLheaders Just above the initials,
again at both ends, is a small lozenge, also of glazed
headers. This same glazed brick decoration is seen on the
chimney curtain of Mt. Republican, a significant Federal
house about four miles west of this property. While the
chimney curtain of Mt. Republican is by all appearances
original those at Waverley are not, a claim substantiated
by the prescnce of seams in the brickwork and variations
in the coloring and size of the brichks in the area between
the attic windows and the tops of the curtain walls. Thus,
Morgan Harris' initials and the small diamonds werc added
after the house was first built. ,

The present covering of the gable roof of the main block
and the circa 1826 cast extension is of slate but fragments
of earlier wood shingles can be found in the attic of the
main block, The roof, which on the main block is flat at
the crown, is heavily framed but does not utilize purlins,

a ridge pole, or bracing other than collars. The collars havea
a half-dovetailed half-lap where they arc joined to the
rafters., The rafters themnselves are morticed, tcnoned and
winnad at the ridge and are butted onto a flat board plate
laid on top of the front and rear walls. This type of framing
is a common featurce of early nineteenth century buildings

in lower Southern Maryland. The use of cut nails thioughout

I — ot

(Sce continuation sheet Neo. 2) GPU 921.724
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7. DESCRIPTION, continued

seems to indicate that the roof might have been rebuilt
after the fire,.

At the east end of the house, in addition to and directly
behind the two story addition previously mentioned, stands
a long, one-story kitchen-hyphen wing of undetermined age.
Although there is a consistancy in the bonding of the outside
walls, variations in the thicknesses of the hyphen walls
(see plan) suggest that this part might constitute the
alteration of an earlier structure. The hyphen is presently
divided into two rooms, a narrow hall with an adjoining
pantry. Below the pantry floor is a brick walled opening
that might have initially served as an outside entrance to
the cellar of the main block. It is possible that the south
wall of tha pantry is later and tha* only the hall, or at
least part of it, served as the actual connecting link
between th: two buildings, or is part of a structure that
preceeded the prescnt kitchen-hyphea arrangement.

The f.rst floor room configuration of Waverley consists
of four rooms, a small entrance vestibule and a larger rear
stair hall.* One of the most interesting interior features
of the house is the manner in which the two first floor frort
rooms are arranged so that each extends half-way into that
area throujh which the hall would pass. To compensate for
this the cantered entrance on the principal facade opens
into a small triangular shaped vestibule, with angled doors
opening into the two adjoining roors. At the rear of the
house the stair hall terminates in about tHe middle of '
the house, also with angled doors cpening into the two front
rooms. This same arrangement of psrtition walls is repeated
in the bassment, as well as on the second floor. All of
the partition walls are of brick. The main stair, positionad
on the west wall of the hall, rises in four flights to the
attic, interrupted by two landings. The simple detail of
this stair, with delicate posts and lightly turned balusters,
is characteristic of the Federal period. When the housec
was restored in the late 1960's, panelling was added to the
side walls of the stair to a height level with that of the
balustrade.

Throughout the house the woodwork, icluding doors, windows,
mantles ard hardware is all characteristic of the Federal
period, and all of it installed at one time with few alterations
since, excepting the loss of several first flodr carpenter v
locks, the panelling on the stair wall and a_,small amount
of panelling added to a wall of the library. All of the rooms
of the house are finished in a light and airy manner, free
of extrancous detail, and are extremely handsome in appearance.

(See continuation sheet No. 3) GPO 921-774
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wWhen the house was restored by the present owners great care

was taken to camouflage the introduction of modern conveniences,
including plumbing and clectricity. The two principal bathrooms
are contained in two rooms of the 1826 addition, areas that

had previously been used for storage. A third half-bath

is built into the triangular area above the first floor
entrance vestibule and a fourth at the end of an attic

hall. The kitchen, a near ruin when the restoration commenced,
has experienced the greatest number of changes, including

a new brick floor, panelled walls, new sash and doors and
accompanyine moundings, and a reconstruction of the original
walk-in fireplace. One of the Most ‘nteresting features of

the kitchen is an extremely deep and narrow stair to an

attic loft “hat is enclosed between the kitchen-pantry partition
wall.

*This floor plan, not recorded elsewhere in the region and
believed to be unigque, is based on a traditional Southern
Maryland pl in used throughout the eighteenth century, its
earliest resorded example dating cirzca 1720-25 and the latest.
circa 1800. Normally the configuration would consist of

two large front rooms, one of which would be longer than

the other aid into which the principal entrance door would
open, and a centered rear stair hall extending half the dept!
of the hous: and flanked by two lesser rooms,

*

When Waverley was acquired by the present owners the
grounds around the house had overgrown to such an extent
that it was impossible to photograph the house at any angle.
With the cl:2aring of the site it is now possible to obsecrve
several intaresting features. The most notable of thesc are
irrigation ditclhies separating the inmediate grounds from
former orchard areas. Buildings reraining include a brick and
frame quarter, initially a one story brick structure believe!l
to have been built in the early nincteenth century and then
raised to a two story height in the late nineteenth century,
and a brick, pyramid roofed dairy. Sites include that of
an eighteenth century conbination corncrib and jail and an
icehouse. Remnants of brick and gravel walks leading from the
house to the wells, servants house, and the rivershore can still
be secen. Not far from the west end of the ‘house is the Harris
family cemetery containing the graves of Morgan Harris, his
two wives, sceveral of their children and numerous descendants.

GPO 9p21.724
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STATEMENT OF 51GNIFICANCE

Waverley is well known throughout the lower Southern
Maryland region, not only for its distinctive architecture,
but also as the house supposedly built by Dr. Morgan Harris,
member of a once prominent and influential family. Although
it is now an accepted fact that Dr. Harris did not actually
build the house, his influence on its present form estab-
lishes a close bond between the two.

Waverley is situated on a tract of land not far from
the site of Burrough Hall, a gambrel-roofed frame house
built in 1774 by Colonel Thomas Harris, where Morgan Harris
was born and raised. As a member of a moderately wealthy
family, Morgan was provided with ample opportunity and
training for personal advancement. Although the opposite
is true cf all members of his immediate family, there is
scant bicgraphical material relat.ng to Morgan's early lifa.
It is kncwn, however, that when a young man, he and his
brother Thomas had left the county and resided in the West
Indies. When Morgan returned to Charles County in about
1819-1820, he brought with him a wife of Creole ancestry.
This union spawned great controve:sy at the time and is
still the object of much local speculation and comment.

Morgan and Ann Harris first 2ived at Burrough Hall,
but in 1823, Morgan inherited Waverlev, then known as Bowlas
Purchase and St. George and consisting of about 473 acres.
Historical and physical evidence stronqgly suggests that a
large brick house, similar in plan to the house existing
today, had been built on the property about 1795. When
Morgan acjuived the property, the building was either in
need of extensive rcpairs or was mercly modernized. What-
ever the case,. Morcan Harris replaced the roof, built
curtains between the chimneys which he emblazoned with his
initials and changed the interior finishings. By about
1826, he had also added a brick kitchen, an auxiliary stai:
wing, and a large rear porch. The house as it’ is today
reflects a strong Federal influence, all of it contemporary
to Morgan Harris' residence. Except for minor improvements
made during its recent restoration, the house remains almost

Lexactly tiie way Morxgan Harris last saw it.

(see continuation sheet #4)
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SIGNIFICANCE

8. DESTRIPEION, continued

Waverley

Waverley, because of its extremely unusual floor plan,
five bay principal facade, and wealth of simple but handsome
interior detail, deserves recognition as one of the better and
more complete examples of Federal architecture in Southern
Maryland. The fact that it is an alteration of. an ecarlier
building does not diminish its significance when one considers
the thoroughness to which the alteration was executed. It
is without question a regional landmark worthy of continued
preservation.

' GPO 921.724
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Waverley (See Vertical File for original)
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